
Report To The Chairman, 
Committee On Labor And Human Resources 
United States Senate 

The Department Of Labor’s Handling Of The 
investigation And Litigation Of Alleged 
Abuses Of The Southern Nevada Culinary 
Workers And Bartenders Pension Trust Fund 

“T tlr: Department of Labor’s investigation 
and Irtigation of alleged abuses of the South- 
rt:rn N~vadi~ Culinary Workers and Bar- 
~r~nclers Pension Trust Fund (the Trust) re- 
stlltorl in one of the major suits brought to 
ds~te under the Employee Retirement In- 
c:(;rrHtij Sf?curity Act (ERISA) of 1974. ERISA 
WF~S the first comprehensive legislation 
passtxl rr?yulatiny private pension plans. 
lJnr’lt,r 11s ERISA responsibilities, Labor in- 
vc:atigated certain allegations made against 
ttl:t: T I usl, substantiated the alleged 
~‘,rr’xl~lt:rr’rs, :.rr~d initiated civil litigation 
3g;llnst ttlr: “TrtrsE trustees and others. 

Ttris rt#ptrrt rt?sponds to questions raised by 
th(+ Ctlititrmr~n regarding Labor’s handling of 
lt11; ilrwes;tigation and litigation of the alleged 
rlh.lst,s of the Trust. 

Ml I I 
125540 

GAO/HRD-84-60 

‘;3KLxi SEPTEMBER 28,1984 



Request for copies of GAO reports should be I 
sent to: 

US. General Accounting Office 
Document Handling and Information 

Services Facility 
P.O. Box 6015 
Gaithersburg, Md. 20760 

Telephone (202) 2756241 

The first five copies of individual reports are 
free of charge. Additional copies of bound 
audit reports are $3.25 each. Additional 
copies of unbound report (i.e., letter reports) 
and most other publications are $1.00 each. 
There will be a 25% discount on all orders for 
100 or more copies mailed to a single address. 
Sales orders must be prepaid on a cash, check, 
or money order basis. Check should be made 
out to the “Superintendent of Documents”. 



UNITED STATES GENERAL ACCOUNTING OFFICE 
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20548 

B-216459 

The Honorable Orrin G. Hatch 
Chairman, Committee on Labor 

and Human Resources 
United States Senate 

Dear Mr. Chairman: 

In response to your request letter and subsequent meetings 
with your office, we have examined the Department of Labor's 
handling of the investigation and litigation of alleged abuses 
of the Southern Nevada Culinary Workers and Bartenders pension 
Trust Fund (the Trust). Labor's investigation of the Trust re- 
sulted in one of the major suits brought to date under the Em- 
ployee Retirement Income Security Act (ERISA) of 1974, as 
amended (29 U.S.C. 1001, et seq.). ERISA was the first compre- 
hensive legislation passedregulating private pension plans. 
Labor is responsible for enforcing the act's reporting, disclo- 
sure, and fiduciary provisions. 

We made our review at Labor headquarters in Washington, 
D.C., and at Labor's San Francisco and Los Angeles offices. We 
reviewed the pertinent provisions of ERISA and Labor's regula- 
tions, policies, and strategies for enforcing ERISA, investigat- 
ing funds, and litigating civil cases. We reviewed and evalu- 
ated documents compiled by Labor during its investigation and 
litigation. We also interviewed former and present Labor offi- 
cials regarding the department's handling of the case. The de- 
tails of the case discussed in this report are a matter of 
public record. 

our findings and conclusions are summarized below and 
discussed in greater depth in the appendixes. The details of 

~ the scope and methodology, including the specific matters you 
asked us to review, are discussed in appendix II. The list of 
agency officials responsible for the activities discussed in 
this report is in appendix VIII. 
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BACKGROUND 

Between 1973 and 1977, trustees of the Trust loaned 
$24.9 million to corporations controlled by Mr. Morris Shenker, 
owner, at that time, of the Dunes Hotel and Casino in Las Vegas, 
Nevada, None of these loans were fully repaid. According to 
the Trust's current real estate asset manager (a representative 
of a trust who acquires, manages, and/or disposes of a trust's 
assets), the amount due to the Trust in August 1983, including 
principal and interest, was about $36.7 million. This figure 
takes into account real estate pledged to the Trust as collat- 
eral valued by the Trust's asset manager at about $13.4 million. 

Under its ERISA responsibilities, Labor investigated cer- 
tain allegations made against the Trust. After substantiating 
the alleged problems, Labor filed a complaint--the initial 
document filed with the court which describes the allegations-- 
initiating civil litigation against the Trust'S trustees, 
Mr. Shenker, and four companies owned or controlled by 
Mr. Shenker--Murrieta Hot Springs (Murrieta), Sierra Charter 
Corporation (Sierra), IJK Nevada, Inc. (IJK), and S&F Corpora- 
tion (S&F). Murrieta, Sierra, and S&F are real estate develop- 
ment companies. IJK is a holding company originally formed to 
hold stock of the Dunes. Labor's complaint, dated March 30, 
1977, alleged that the defendant trustees (1) breached their 
fiduciary responsibility, (2) failed to diversify Trust assets 
as required by ERISA, and (3) made illegal loans to parties 
related to employers contributing to the Trust (parties in 
interest). Labor also alleged that Mr. Shenker controlled all 
of the previously named corporations and, as a shareholder and 
an officer of an employer who made contributions to the Trust 
through the Dunes, was therefore a party in interest. Labor 
sought restitution to the Trust from all the defendants for all 
moneys allegedly loaned, including interest, and from the 
defendant trustees for losses incurred as a result of their al- 
leged fiduciary breaches. In February 1980, the Trust asset 
manager, T. L. Karsten, Associates (Karsten), also filed a com- 
plaint against Mr. Shenker, Sierra, and IJK seeking restitution 
to the Trust, In 1978 and 1979, the trustees filed suits 
against the Trust attorneys for malpractice. 

In January 1983, Labor settled with all of the defendant 
trustees (except one) for $3.7 million. The Trust attorneys, 
although not named in the complaint, were included in this 
settlement. Through an informal agreement, the malpractice 

2 



B--216459 

claims filed against the attorneys by the trustees were dropped,, 
In April 1984, the remaining trustee was enjoined from serving 
as a trustee of an ERISA-covered plan for 5 years. 

Both Labor's and the asset manager's cases against Mr. 
Shenker and his companies went to trial in U.S. district court 
on June 1, 1983. Karsten's claims were based on contract and 
such other common law theories as fraud. Labor's claims, in 
contrast, were based on ERISA violations. Because the legal 
character of the asset manager's claims entitled the defendants 
to a jury trial, both cases were heard by the jury. 

On November 28 and 30, 1983, the jury decided on the asset 
manager's claims and found Mr. Shenker liable for the loans. 
The asset manager was seeking $36.7 million plus the collateral 
properties. Based on the jury's verdict, the court ordered Mr. 
Shenker to pay the Trust $33.9 million and allowed the Trust to 
retain the properties. On January 3, 1984, Mr. Shenker filed a 
bankruptcy petition. According to a Labor official and state- 
ments Mr. Shenker made to the press, the filing was specifically 
aimed at blocking attachment of his assets under the November 
judgment, pending the estimated 1 to 2 years he expects to be 
involved in his appeal. The petition listed 49 creditors' 
claims totaling about $184 million. 

The court ruled on Labor's claim on May 15, 1984, confirm- 
ing the Karsten judgment of $33.9 million. The court ordered 
Mr. Shenker to pay $33.9 million in restitution to the Trust, 
awarded interest on that figure to May 15, 1984, and allowed the 
Trust to retain the properties. The court also awarded costs 
and attorneys fees. This amount has not yet been determined. 
In addition, the court plans to decide on the amount of post- 
transfer property expenses to be assessed to Mr. Shenker. 
Post-transfer expenses are the costs incurred by the Trust after 
the ownership of the collateral property was transferred to 
it. In June 1984, the case supervisory attorney told us that 
Mr. Shenker's bankruptcy would continue to delay collection of 
the judgment. 

LABOR HAD EARLY INDICATIONS OF 
PROBLEMS BUT DID NOT PROMPTLY 
INVESTIGATE THE FUND 

Although Labor had indications of problems with the Trust's 
financial management in 1975, it did not begin an onsite inves- 
tigation of the Trust until March 1977. 
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In September 1975, Labor obtained information questioning 
the Trust's loans to two Shenker-controlled corporations 
(Murrieta and Sierra). This information, documented in a Sep- 
tember 1975 Department of Labor memorandum, included an allega- 
tion that the Trust had made $7 million in illegal loans under 
ERISA to Mr. Shenker. At this time, Labor also knew that 
Mr. Shenker had received $57 million in alleged illegal and im- 
prudent loans from two other pension funds and that he had con- 
nections with alleged organized crime figures. Between Septem- 
ber 1975, when Labor first learned of the Shenker loans, and 
March 1977, when Labor filed its complaint, the Trust disbursed 
$10.1 million in loans to Shenker-controlled corporations. 

None of the Labor headquarters or field officials that we 
talked with could recall the September 1975 memorandum or recall 
specifically why investigative action was not taken earlier. 
They told us that Labor did not have ERISA enforcement proce- 
dures in 1975 and that much of their staff's time was spent on 
technical assistance work-- answering questions about the newly 
enacted (1974) statute-- and not on enforcement activities. An 
assistant regional administrator told us that in September 1975, 
ERISA investigators did not have a high level of ERISA expertise 
and few investigations were started during this period. How- 
ever, a division chief told us that an investigation should have 
been started given what Labor knew about Mr. Shenker and the 
other Shenker transactions. 

THE SOLICITOR'S OFFICE ROLE IN 
THE SELECTION OF THE TRUST'S 
TWO ASSET MANAGERS 

Labor does not have departmental policy or guidance regard- 
ing its role in the search for and selection of asset managers. 
Labor's role in the selection of the Trust's two asset managers 
was largely determined on an "ad hoc" basis by Solicitor's Of- 
fice attorneys. Attorneys from the Solicitor's Office partici- 
pated in the search for the first asset manager, Upper Avenue 
Bank (UAB), but did not participate in the selection of the 
second, and current, asset manager, Karsten. 

LABOR'S ROLE IN MONITORING 
THE TRUST'S ASSET MANAGER 

Labor requested and obtained from the court a provision 
that required the asset manager to periodically report Trust 
investment activities and real estate transactions. Labor, how- 
ever, did not develop a plan to receive, evaluate, and if neces- 
sary, act on the information it received. Consequently, the 
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Labor officials who performed some monitoring activities had 
such disagreements as (1) which Labor office should perform the 
monitoring, (2) how it should be accomplished, and (3) what ac- 
tion Labor should take regarding potentially imprudent invest- 
ments. 

The former asset manager, UAB, made two real estate invest- 
ments in Trust collateral which caused some Labor officials to 
become concerned about the collateral's security. However, be- 
cause of disagreements among the Labor offices and the lack of a 
monitoring plan, the department did not fully examine these 
transactions. The transactions took place and, according to a 
May 1981 assessment by Karsten of the Trust's real estate as- 
sets, one $3.6 million transaction could result in a net loss of 
$309,500. 

CONCLUSIONS 

Our review showed that, although Labor had indications of 
problems with the Trust's finances in 1975, it did not begin an 
onsite investigation until March 1977. During this period, 
the Trust disbursed $10.1 million to the Shenker-controlled 
companies. We believe that, given what Labor knew about 
Mr. Shenker and his $57 million in alleged illegal and imprudent 
loans from two other pension funds, an investigation should have 
been started earlier by Labor. 

Our review also showed that Labor does not have formal 
policies and procedures regarding what role it should play in 
the search for and selection of trust asset managers. Our re- 
view, however, was 1 imited to one fund, and we do not know if 
this lack of formal policy is a problem. In addition, Labor did 
not establish procedures to provide a planned and coordinated 
effort to monitor the Trust's asset manager's activities. 
Again, because our review was limited to one fund, we do not 
know how widespread or significant this problem may be. 

As agreed with your office, we did not obtain agency com- 
ments on this report. However, we discussed the matters con- 
tained in the report with Labor officials and considered their 
comments in finalizing the report. 
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Also, as agreed with your office, unless you publicly an- 
nounce Lts contents earlier, we plan no further distribution of 
the report until 30 days from its issue date. At that time, we 
will send copies to the Secretary of Labor, other interested 
parties, and others upon request. 

Sincerely yours, 

Richard L. Fogel 
Director 
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APPENDIX I APPENDIX I 

INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 

The Department of Labor's investigation and litigation of 
ullegcd abuses of the Southern Nevada Culinary Workers and Bar- 
tcntlcrs Pension Trust Fund (the Trust) resulted in one of the 
major su,its brought to date under the Employee Retirement Income 
Security Act (ERISA) of 1974, as amended (29 U.S.C. 1001, et 
SCYJ.). f!!RISA was the first comprehensive legislation passz 
'kecjulating private pension plans. Labor is responsible for en- 
forcing the act's reporting, disclosure, and fiduciary provi- 
sions . 

Between 1973 and 1977, trustees of the Trust loaned 
$24.9 million to corporations controlled by Mr. Morris Shenker, 
owner, at that time, of the Dunes Hotel and Casino in Las Vegas, 
Nevada, None of these loans were fully repaid. Under its ERISA 
re~;pon:;iIr:,ilities, Labor investigated certain allegations made 
against the Trust, substantiated the alleged problems, and ini- 
tiated civil litigation against the Trust trustees, Mr. Shenker, 
and four companies owned or controlled by Mr. Shenker--Murrieta 
IIot Springs (Murrieta), Sierra Charter Corporation (Sierra), IJK 
Nevada, Inc. (IJK), and S&F Corporation (S&F). Murrieta, 
Sierra, and S&F are real estate development companies. IJK is a 
holding company originally formed to hold stock of the Dunes, 
Labor's litigation alleges that the Trust trustees and others 
violated the fiduciary responsibility, prohibited transactions, 
and investment diVerSifiCatiOn PrOViSiOnS of ERISA in the 
ne(joti,ation and management of a series of real estate loans. 

THE EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT .-l.".l 
INCOME SECURITY ACT .m.------.m-. """."*-- 

To protect employees' interests, ERISA established compre- 
hensive minimum standards for how employees become eligible to 
participate in pension plans (participation standards), how em- 
ployees earn a nonforfeitable right to pension benefits (vesting 
standards), how the plans should be funded (funding provisions), 
how the plans should be operated in the best interests of plan 
participants (fiduciary standards), and to what extent and to 
whom plan information is to be reported and disclosed (reporting 
and disclosure requirements). Labor and the Internal Revenue 
Service (IRS) share enforcement responsibilities for these 
standards. Labor is primarily responsible for enforcing the 
reporting, disclosure, and fiduciary provisions. IRS enforces 
the act's participation, vesting, and funding provisions. 

1 
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One of the! most important and significant features of 
KIE I !;A, dr?signned to prevent abuse and misuse of private pension 
E’r1llrcl:; f is the stringent reyuircments placed on persons acting as 
I irluc i.ar its (persons who exercise discretionary control or au- 
t hot-i ty by making decisions about a fund" s management ahd as- 
! ; ( : t.. !"S ) . ERISA requires a fiduciary, such as a trustee or asset 
Irl~irracJc? r , to discharge his or her duties solely in the interest 
('~1' the: participants and beneficiaries for exclusively providing 
f-.j~c:m with benefits and defraying the reasonable expenses of ad- 
HI i.nistering the fund , Fiduciaries are subject to the "prudent 
Illr.\XI rule l ” That is, they must exercise the care, skill, pru- 
clencc2!, and diligence under the prevailing circumstances that a 
j)rudent person acting in a like capacity and familiar with such 
matters would use in conducting a similar enterprise. EKISA 
I~l.sc:, requires fiduciaries to diversify fund investments so as to 
minimize the risk of large losses, unless under the circum- 
r-;t;lnct?s it is clearly prudent not to do so. 

ERISA provides that fiduciaries who breach their responsi- 
tlilities, obligations, or duties (1) shall be personally liable 
to make good any losses resulting from their actions and subject 
to removal and (2) may be subject to civil and criminal prosecu- 
t: ion . 

ERISA ENFORCEMENT ."----- ".- 

Within Labor, the Pension and Welfare Benefit Program 
(PWBP) office, formerly in the Labor-Management Services Admin- 
istration (LMSA), enforces ERISA. LMSA is under the Assistant 
Secretary of Labor Management Relations, On January 20, 1984, 
the Secretary of Labor signed an order removing PWBP from LMSA 
zlncl making it a separate unit in Labor, reporting directly to 
the Secretary. The transfer took effect on May 20, 1984. 

PWBP performs its enforcement work through a staff at head- 
c.luar ters and in 6 regional and 24 area offices nationwide. PWBP 
ljrovidcs program guidance and direction to regional and area 
oft ice staff. Each regional office, under a regional adminis- 
triitor , is responsible for assuring effective operations and 
adherence to PWBP policy directives. Each regional office has 
;in assistant regional administrator, who serves as a program 
c?xl>ert and provides technical guidance and staff assistance to 
the regional administrator and the area office in the adminis- 
tration and enforcement of EKISA. 
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'rhe area offices have primary responsibility for enforcing 
J{JiISA and are organized in groups that are responsible for in- 
vt';st:'i.~~ating possible ERISA violations. Each area office gener- 
ally consists of one or two group supervisors and 2 to 16 inves- 
ti!jators. 

The area offices initiate and conduct investigations con- 
c(frning alleged ERISA violations. After an investigation, an 
arc>a office may close a case if no violation is detected. If 
violations arts found, the area office submits its investigative 
report to the regional office for review. The regional office 
rc:views the case and returns it to the area office with recom- 
merltlations to secure voluntary compliance, if appropriate. Under 
certain conditions, PWBP's approval must be obtained before 
attempting voluntary compliance, In cases where litigation is 
anticipated, the area office forwards the case to the regional 
office which forwards the case to PWBP. PWBP refers the case to 
the Office of the Solicitor, if appropriate. In most cases, 
PWBP is assisted by the Division of Plan Benefits Security in 
rtatm r ' s SoLicitor's Office. In selected, complex cases PWBP is 
assisted by the Special Litigation Division within the Solici- 
tor's Office. 

THE TRUST _-.- --- 

In December 1971, the Nevada Resort Association, the Culi- 
nary Workers union Local 226, and the Bartenders union Local 165 
entered into a trust agreement creating the Nevada Resort 
Association-Culinary Workers and Bartenders Pension Trust Fund. 
These unions are affiliated with the Hotel and Restaurant Em- 
ployees International Union. 

The Trust was organized as a multiemployer plan under the 
Labor Management Relations Act of 1947, as amended, commonly 
calLc:cl the Taft J-Iartley Act (29 U.S.C. 186 (c)(5)), for the ex- 
clusive purpose of providing pension benefits for employees who 
wcrc rncrnl.xrs covered by collective bargaining agreements between 
the two unions and the employers. This act provides that such 
I- I.1 r-It3 $5 based on payments or contributions from employers be (1) 
rrranncjctl for the sole benefit of eligible employees and their 
beneficiaries, (2) governed by a written agreement specifying 
the t;mployer payments and contributions and employee benefits, 
trntl ('3) administered by an equal number of representatives from 
wnploycc~ s ' and employers' organizations. In November 1973, the 
Trust trustees changed the Trust's name to the Southern Nevada 
CuL.i.nary and Bartenders Pension Trust. 
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'I'hc Trust, from its inception in 1971, has been adminis- 
t..c: t:fd by a hoard of six trustees, three representing the em- 
11 LW~Wi ;ind three representing the unions. Under the Trust 
d'j r-(?('lllf.?n t , 
t.tb 

the trustees had exclusive management and control of 
T r: \.I R t , including asset investment decisions. An administra- 

t..or IrldnalJc.!I; the day-to-day activities of the Trust, and a con- 
tar-c) L,lc?r is the Trust’s chief accounting officer. There are cur- 
r*(:tlt:ly about 37,000 participants in the Trust. 

'VWST REAL ESTATE INVESTMENTS 1"" I_ _ I I I ",I( l_" ll""-,,-,,--. 

Fletwcen 1973 and 1977 the Trust loaned Murrieta and Sierra 
~%4,930,000. The loans are summarized below. 

Funds Loaned to Shenker-Controlled Corporations 

na te Borrower Amount "l--"-__" 

Ma't , 24, 1973 Murrieta Hot Springs $ 2,000,000 
July 30, 1973 Murrieta Hot Springs 5,000,000 
June 7, 1974 Sierra Charter 7,450,ooo 
JU.~Y 28, 1975 Sierra Charter 1,350,000 
Ix!c . 1, 1975 Sierra Charter 9,130,000 

Total $24,930,000 

In addition to these loans, in May 1976, the Trust also guaran- 
tcct3 to Valley Bank of Nevada a $2,450,000 Sierra loan. AC- 
cordi nq to Labor, the $24.9 million in loans represented 53 per- 
ctitrt oi: the Trust's assets at December 31, 1977. 

The March 1973 loan was secured by 206 lots at the Murrieta 
llot Slrrinys development in California. In July 1973, the trus- 
tcc;s agreed to loan Murrieta an additional $5 million. This 
loan was secured by 556 acres of undeveloped land in the 
Murricta development. 

The June 1974 loan to Sierra was secured by a trust deed on 
tr.3ct.s of land located at Gardnerville, Nevada. Under the July 
1975 tigrc?c?ment the trustees lent Sierra an additional 
$1,350,000* This loan, which was an addendum to the original 
Sierra loan, also obligated Sierra to assume payment of interest 
due from Murrieta on the original $2 million loan. Sierra as- 
r;i!Inc-ltl its equity in certain third-party lot sale contracts to 
tllc? Trust as security for this loan. 
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ZJnder the December 1975 commitment, which also was an ad- 
dendum to the original loan, the Trust advanced Sierra an addi- 
tional $9,130,000. The monthly advances averaged about $570,000 
per month from December 1975 through March 1977. Sierra also 
agreed to guarantee all of Murrieta's indebtedness to the Trust, 
including interest then due from Murrieta and Sierra. Repayment 
of moneys loaned under the first and second addenda and the 1974 
loan to Sierra were also personally guaranteed by Mr. Shenker. 
These amounts were to be added to the total principal and inter- 
est due and bear interest at 11 percent per year. Deeds from 
the sales of lots at the Murrieta and Sierra developments were 
assigned to the Trust as additional collateral. 

TRUST LITIGATION ---- 

On March 30, 1977, Labor filed an ERISA civil suit in the 
district court, District of Nevada, against present and past 
trustees; Mr. Morris A. Shenker; and Shenker-controlled corpora- 
tions (IJK, Murrieta, S&F, and Sierra). Labor alleged that the 
defendant trustees (1) breached their fiduciary responsibility, 
(2) failed to diversify fund assets, and (3) made illegal loans 
to parties related to employers contributing to the Trust (par- 
ties in interest). Murietta and Sierra were the loan recipi- 
ents, IJK and S&F received loaned funds through Sierra, and IJK 
indirectly employed persons who were participants in and covered 
by the Trust. Labor alleged that Mr. Shenker controlled all of 
the previously named corporations and, as a shareholder and an 
officer of an employer who made con,tributions to the Trust 
through the Dunes, was therefore a party in interest. In a 
December 1982 amended complaint, Labor alleged that Mr. Shenker, 
IJK, Murrieta, Sierra, and S&F knowingly participated in these 
ERISA violations. Labor sought restitution to the Trust from 
all the defendants for all moneys advanced, including interest. 
Labor believed that all of the loans were covered by ERISA, 
including the pre-ERISA loans, because addenda made to these 
loans after the effective date of ERISA constituted material 
changes. 

Sierra and Mr. Shenker filed counterclaims against Labor 
claiming damages for its allegedly negligent investigation, un- 
warranted institution of litigation, failure to discuss settle- 
ment, fiduciary breaches, and pursuit of a "vendetta" against 
Mr. Shenker. 

In February 1980, the Trust's asset manager at that time, 
T. L. Karsten, Associates (Karsten), filed suit against Mr. 
Shenker, Sierra, and IJK charging Mr. Shenker and Sierra with 
fraud and seeking restitution to the Trust. Mr. Shenker and 
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I; i ~:y:rd , in turn, filed counterclaims against the Trust's asset 
~f~,::~t-ii.~q~:!r , Karsten . Mr . Shcnker and Sierra also sued the former 
a 15; s (, ! t: In a n age r , lipper Avenue Bank (UAB), now Lakeshore Bank of 
Cl’l i circjo l Both asset managers were sued by Sierra for alleged 
1'i:.iil.urc2 to preserve the value of the collateral properties. 

From March 1977 'to May 1982 the Trust's litigation was 
han(llcd by Labor's Division of Plan Benefits Security. In May 
1982, Labor moved the case to the Special Litigation Division to 
t)t.zttc!r concentrate its resources and efforts on what it con- 
siderf:tl a lar9e and complex litigation. 

The jury ruled on Karsten's claims in November 1983, and 
the court ruled on Labor's claims in May 1984. All other liti- 
I~dti.on filed during this case has been dismissed by the court or 
set tied , 

CALCULATIONS OF BALANCE DUE TO THE TRUST - ""-.- ----__(-. ---."-- 

In August 1983, at Mr. Shenker's trial the Trust asset man- 
acjc r set the amount due (minus the collateral) on the Murrieta 
and Sierra loans at $34,797,525. 

Balance Due to Trust on Murrieta and Sierra Loans 
At August 1, 1983 

Murrieta 
$Z-iiillion $5-z1~ 

man advances 
Accru~x1 intcrest 
i!9axawer payments 

on the loans 
Ot?tlits from 

lot sa.lcs of 
collateral 

Co 1. lateral prop 
c;rty valuesa 

Balance due 

loan loan Sierra loans 

$2,000,000 $5,000,000 $17,930,000 
1,936,020 41609,289 19,935,015 

(336,521) (691,913) (444,117) 

(174,621) (1,500,857) 

(1,296,096) (5,086,980) (7,081,694) 

$2,128,782 $3,830,396 $281838,347 
-- 

mtal 

24,930,ooo 
26,480,324 

(1,472,551) 

(1,675,478) 

13,464,770) 

341797,525 

*he court established a valuation date for each property, either the date 
the! prcqerty wa.> p sold or the date the title was transferred to the Trust, 
wh%chevcx was earlier. The asset manager determined the property values as 
sales prices or appraisal values , minus expenses and liens against the prop- 
c?rties, as of the court established date. 
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~hr_r balance due at August 1, 1983, does not include the 
amount due on the Valley Bank of Nevada loan. The Trust settled 
its liability under this guarantee by paying $1,951,445 to the 
valley Bank 1 Therefore, for litigation purposes, the Trust 
asset manager included this loan and set the total balance due 
to the Trust on August 1, 1983, at $36,748,970. 

Labor's calculation for litigation purposes is different 
from the asset manager's figure. Labor calculated the amount 
due tcj the Trust as of Novcmbe.r 1, 1983, at approximately 
$61,000,000. According to the supervisory attorney handling the 
Litigation, Labor's figure is higher because they (1) included 
additional interest accrued on the loans from August 1, 1983, to 
November 1, 1983, (2) included only cash expenses paid on the 
collateral properties before and after the valuation dates, 
(3) included payments received from the sale of collateral 
properties, and (4) gave no credit for the collateral properties 
stil.L held by the Trust because they believed that the defense 
did not prove the values in court. If credit for the collateral 
j,,ropcrtics is given, the amount due to the Trust, according to 
Labor , is approximately $50 million. 



OBJECTIVES, SCOPE, AND METHODOLOGY ----- 

APPENDIX II 

The Chairman's request asked us to review how the Depart- 
ment of Labor conducted its investigation and litigation of 
;11.l.c(jations of abuse of the Trust, Specifically, the Chairman 
;i:;ketl us to answer the following questions: 

--When did Labor first discover that the Trust had loaned 
out at least $23 million of its assets? 

--How much money did the Trust loan for real estate 
investment? 

--How were these loans secured? What collateral was 
provided? 

--Who were the loans made to? 

--What attempts has Labor made to retrieve the money? 

--What is the amount of the current indebtedness? 

--Have the trustees been replaced to protect the Trust's 
membership? 

--Did Labor select the Trust asset manager or advise the 
court on the appointment of the Trust asset manager? 

--Who is the current Trust asset manager and how was this 
asset manager selected? 

--What are Labor's policies regarding the selection of 
asset managers? 

--What is the current status of the case? 

--What offers to settle, if any, have been made by Labor? 

--Was an analysis of the Trust's real estate investments 
made by Labor? If so, what were the findings? What 
actions were taken? 

--Do we believe that Labor handled this case in a prompt, 
efficient manner that safeguarded the union membership 
and its assets? 
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---What recommendations, if any, do we have? 

--Which Labor officials have been responsible for the 
handling of the case? 

it is GAO's policy not to interfere with issues before the 
tour ts )I Therefore, we do not express an opinion on the merits 
of ~&or's litigation or on Labor's handling of the trial. 

We made the review at Labor's headquarters in Washington, 
n.c., and at its regional and area offices in San Francisco and 
Los Angeles, respectively. 

Our review was performed in accordance with generally 
accepted government auditing standards. 

At Labor's headquarters, we reviewed the pertinent provi- 
sions of ERISA, particularly those relating to Labor's enforce- 
ment and litigation authority and responsibilities. In addi- 
tion, we identified and evaluated Labor regulations, policies, 
procedures, and strategies for enforcing ERISA and for investi- 
gating pension plans and litigating civil cases. 

Our review of Labor's activities regarding the Trust's case 
was based primarily on an extensive review and evaluation of the 
voluminous records and documents compiled (more than 700,000 
documents were gathered before the trial) by Labor. These docu- 
ments included depositions (testimony taken down in writing 
under oath), deposition exhibits (documents produced and identi- 
fied during a deposition for use as evidence), and pleadings 
(formal written allegations and counter allegations made by the 
parties in a legal action). 

At Labor's Office of the Solicitor, which is litigating the 
Trust's case, we reviewed (1) approximately 2,000 deposition ex- 
hibits which were available as of November 1982 and selected 
deposition exhibits available after November 1982, (2) selected 
depositions (472 depositions were taken during the litigation), 
(3) about 1,000 pleadings which had been filed by November 1982 
and selected pleadings filed after November 1982 (2,154 plead- 
ings had been filed as of April 1984), and (4) all case manage- 
ment and correspondence files. Labor gave us access to all of 
its documents and files, including Solicitor's Office case man- 
agement files. 
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WC! interviewed most former and present management, super- 
v'i"s<:)rjj/, ;tnil 'Line attorneys who worked on the litigation, includ- 
,I r"l,,l f,i furmcr Solicitor, the Deputy Solicitor, and other Solici- 
t.,<> y' ‘ c; off-ice staff who worked on the case, such as accountants 
d11(1 t.:(:chnical staff . 

Within Labor, PWBP enforces ERISA. PWBP and area staff 
I)~:ri:orrncd the investigation of the Trust. At Labor's headquar- 
tc? r F"!l , we reviewed PWBP's strategy, policies, and procedures for 
carrying out its enforcement responsibilities and achieving com- 
f,'L.iance under ERISA. We discussed enforcement strategy and the 
investigation and litigation of the Trust's case with current 
and former PWBP officials and staff, including the former admin- 
istrator of PWBP and the former assistant administrators of the 
offices of Enforcement and of Fiduciary Standards. We reviewed 
all documents regarding the case that were available in the PWBP 
OEiiCC?, These documents included the Trust's investigative 
files, files regarding the Trust's requests to obtain Labor's 
I,errnission to engage in real estate transactions normally prohi- 
bited under ERISA, and files on the severance pay and health and 
welfare funds. Our review was limited to Labor's investigation 
of: thri Trust, and we did not review Labor's current ERISA en- 
forcement activities. 

We interviewed the assistant administrator for Field Opera- 
tions and Labor officials in the Los Angeles and San Francisco 
offices, and we reviewed Labor's case files on the Trust in LOS 
Angeles and San Francisco. We also conducted telephone inter- 
v i e w s with staff in Labor's St. Louis area office in its Kansas 
City region. This office had investigated loans that Mr. 
Shcnker's companies had received from another union's pension 
fund. 

During our review, we also examined hundreds of documents 
regarding the Trust that the Committee staff had given us, most 
of which we had already received from Labor. We also obtained 
the staff's analyses of the documents. We discussed the case 
with Committee staff who had been investigating Labor's activi- 
t i. e .s in preparation for Committee hearings.1 

lC)v,rsight Hearings on the Culinary Workers Pension Trust Fund, 
K'c!i,ruary .1982 I Senate Committee on Labor and Human Resources. 
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CABOR HAD EARLY INDICATIONS OF PROBLEMS .---. .-m----m -..- 

BUT DID NQT PROMPTLY INVESTIGATE THE TRUST --------1_e-- -... --- 

Labor had information in September 1975 questioning the 
Trust's financial management, including an allegation that the 
'['rust had made $7 million in prohibited loans to Shenker- 
controlled companies. Similar allegations continued through 
1.976. Labor also received allegations that Mr. Shenker obtained 
an additionit $57 million in alleged illegal and imprudent loans 
from two other lxnsion funds. In addition, Labor knew that, 
according to the Department of Justice, Mr. Shenker had connec- 
tions with alleged organized crime figures. 

Although Labor had early indications of problems, it did 
not begin an onsite investigation at the Trust until March 1977. 
Within 3 weeks of the start of the investigation, Labor filed a 
civil lawsuit that stopped the Trust's average monthly disburse- 
1110 I1 t s of $570,000, from the December 1975 loan to the Shenker- 
controlled corporations. Between September 1975, when Labor 
first learned of the Shenker loans, and March 1977, when the 
complaint was filed, the Trust disbursed $10.1 million of the 
total $24.9 million to Shenker-controlled companies. 

LABOR DID NOT ACT ON " -.^- -.--_-.-_-------.---- 
EARLY INFORMATION a, W"_, _.A -_--.m._-------- 

According to the former assistant administrator of the Of- 
fice of Enforcement, Labor was aware, prior to 1970, of allega- 
tions about Mr. Shenker's relationships with alleged organized 
crime members and knew that the Justice Department had investi- 
clatud him regarding his receipt of fees for securing loans for 
third parties from the Teamster's Central States, Southeast and 
Southwest Areas Pension Fund (Teamsters). By late 1975 Labor 
ha<1 al.lcgations of illegal loans to Shenker-controlled corpora- 
tions from the St. Louis Pipefitters Pension and Welfare Funds# 
Teams tc 1s , and the Culinary Workers Pension Trust. These loans 
totaled about $57 million. 

Labor did not act on an early lead - - -.a - - - ...mII- - t"-_....-"^l--.-_--_- 

On September 25, 1975, Labor's St. Louis area office admin- 
i:; tra tor sent a memorandum and newspaper article to the branch 
chief, Special Investigations, Labor Management Standards En- 
ftrrcement (the LMSA unit responsible for regulating labor 
unions). The memorandum provided information on two Trust loans 
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t.0 Mrrrri~ta. The nc!wspapcr article alleged that ivlr. Shcnker bar-1 
t)r~rrc)w~~d $1.2 mill. ion, secured by the Murrieta property, from the 
i~ij)i~~" itters union Local 562 pension and welfare funds and that 
t.ll!.~ 'i)iI)cf" itters pension fund had taken ownership of some of tllc 
jjrc>~>t;rty because Murricta was delinquent on its payments. The 
1:1(.~lilo1:~~1lt31lrn also described allegations that two Trust trustees 
rclrrc’:scnting the employers had resigned because they opposed the 
1Oill'l.S. 'J'he St. Louis area office had obtained this information 
w11ile investigating a Hotel, Motel, Restaurant, F'ood Service and 
Bartenders local union in St. Louis, Missouri. 

Copies of the memorandum were sent to PWBP's Branch of 
Vi(3uciary Standards and Investigations, the Kansas City and San 
Francisco regional oEfices, and the Los Angeles area office. 
The mrltmorandum was sent to Kansas City because the St. Louis 
area office is located in that region, Subsequently, according 
to the San Francisco assistant regional administrator, the chief 
of Special Investigations forwarded the memorandum to the San 
Franci?;co regional office and the Los Angeles area office. 

J,at)or took no action on this lead. None of the Labor offi- 
c i. a '1 $4 in San Francisco, I,023 Angeles, or headquarters we talked 
with about the September 1975 memorandum could recall it or 
recall specifically why investigative action was not taken. In 
San ItJrancisco, we talked with the assistant regional adminis- 
trator for PWBP, and in Los Angeles, we spoke with the area of- 
fice administrator and a supervisory investigator who worked on 
the-l case, At Labor's headquarters, we spoke with the assistant 
administrator for LMSA's field operations division, PWBP's 
rccJiona1 coordinator for the Office of Enforcement, and the 
chir?f of the Division of Reporting Enforcement, Office of En- 
r'orcr:ment. The assistant regional administrator told us that 
I,a1~>r (lid not have ERISA enforcement guidelines or procedures in 
1375 and that most of their staff time was spent performing 
tt!chnical assistance work-- e.g., answering questions about the 
nt:wly cznacted (1974 ) statute --and not conducting compliance or 
entorcement activities, such as investigations of funds. The 
a!;sir;tant regional administrator and the regional coordinator 
tzold us that the ERISA investigators that were employed in 
ScJ)tcmber 1975 did not have a high level of ERISA expertise and 
flew investigations were started during this period. However, 
thrt chief of PWBP's Division of Reporting Enforcement, Office of 
I:nforcement, told us that an investigation should have been 
started based on the information Labor had at the time about 
Y Y. . Shenkcr's alleged organized crime connections and about his 
'Loans from other pension funds. In addition, the assistant 
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;rrllr'l i 11 i.:; t:r;.itror, I;'i(.12(1 Operations Division, said that he did not 
‘know why a C:L~S;C: was not opened. Ordinarily, he told us, such a 
mc:rnor;~n~lum Lou It1 ,lead to a case opening. In a 1980 deposition 
takc!n for this Litigation, the assistant administrator .[:or the 
i)f:f:.i.ec of E;:nf:orct;rmr;nt said that, generally, the area office 
wr)t~l.tj. vcr ify tht? accuracy of such a report by visiting the 
1.1 n i ( 1 n I WC were unable to determine why no action was taken on 
the Sej>tt~mber 1975 memorandum. 

Labor had access to other information .._I - I am.".- - m,ml,ml-,,.mllm- --.--- about problems with the Trust's - -.-_-."------1_-1_1.-.-- 
:~il;;;ncEai-~anaqement ----.....--- -.-"l-l - . ..---_-."- 

‘If I,at)or had started its investigation based on the Septem- 
1~:!r- 1375 information, it would have had access to additional 
information that showed problems with the Trust's financial man- 
rr(jrirntjnt. nascd on this and other information, Labor could have 
iict<!O more? cjuickly to stop the Trust's flow of money to 
!;tl(.!nker-cc:,ntrollf!tl corporations. 

Tn early 1976, the Trust's certified public accountants 
(CPA!; ) , administrator, and lawyer expressed concerns about the 
Trust:,'!; financial management, primarily regarding the legality 
<ln(il cc)Llecti~:,ility of the loans to the Shenker-controlled cor- 
i)ortitions, The CPA's report of its examination of the Trust for 
thri 2 years ended December 31, 1973 and 1974, dated July 31, 
1975, showed that: 

--The loans to Murrieta could be 'a violation of ERISA 
bccnuse, according to the CPA, Vr. Shenker "may be a 
L>arty-in-interest." 

--Murricta had a net capital deficiency on May 31, 1975, 
of- $17,997,957 and a cumulative operating loss of 
$16,487,196 from October 9, 1969, to May 31, 1975. 

--Sierra had a net capital deficiency of $4,016,531 at 
AJ3ri.l 30, 1975. 

--The Department of Housing and TJrban Development had 
susj)endctl Sierra’s permit to sell real estate lots. 

‘I’hr? CI)A’s report of its examination of the Trust for the 2 years 
c!nclc?rl Dccc"mbcr '3.1 , 1974 and 1975, dated May 17, 1976, also 
:;txr,wcti s imi.l;tr problems. 

13 
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In July 1975, according to the Trust controller's report, 
the trustees had instructed the Trust administrator to begin 
monitoring the Sierra investments. According to the administra- 
t"Or ' S report , the Trust was not aware that Sierra was selling 
real ctstate lots which were pledged as Trust collateral and sub- 
stitute real estate collateral was being received. The Trust 
administrator hired a CPA to examine the Sierra investments. 
Detwccn August 1975 and April 1976 the Trust's administrator 
pointed out many problems to the trustees as he started to moni- 
tor Sierra's investments. 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

In August 1975, the administrator questioned whether 
$163,211.60 of $217,972.32 Sierra disbursements were 
properly spent. 

Sierra and Murrieta were delinquent on their payments 
to the Trust. 

In an October 1975 report, the administrator's 
controller questioned "excessive salary" to Sierra's 
president and also pointed out that the Department of 
Housing and TJrban Development had prohibited Sierra 
from engaging in any sales activity since July 1975, 

In October 1975, the administrator sent a letter to the 
trustees highlighting what he believed were significant 
financial problems of the Shenker-controlled 
corporations. 

In December 1975, the administrator started weekly 
monitoring trips to Sierra. 

The controller reported to the administrator that he 
believed that all of Sierra's operations were not 
explained to the administrator or the trustees. 

In April 1976, the controller reported to the trustees 
that Sierra had made some improvements in its financial 
management, but "there is still a long way to go before 
the trust can recover investment in Murrieta Hot 
Springs and Sierra Charter." 

14 
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l,ArrOR STOPPED TRUST DISBURSEMENTS ."m - - - - _ I - - -.- -.-..-.-.-- -I. _-.-.--_------ 
(IN MARCH 30 19-77 - _ - - - - I - - - ,L -..- -..-- 

Al though TJabor continued to receive information through 
IWc'(~mlwr 1.976 questioning the Trust's management, it did not 
:~tiirt i. tr; onsite investigation until ?ilarch 7, 1977. According 
to ii J,nbor official, Labor believed that the alleged violations 
it fount-l i.n March were of such a serious nature that immediate 
;lctitsn was necessary. Consequently, Labor filed a civil lawsuit 
against the trustees, Mr. Shenker, and the Shenker-controlled 
companies on March 30, 1977. At that time the trustees agreed 
to stay) fundi.ng the Shenker-controlled companies; however, more 
than $10. I million had been disbursed since Labor first learned 
of tho problem in September 1975. 

On May 25, 1976, the chief of PWBP's Division of Reporting 
fI:nI:<,,rccment sent a memorandum to the Los Angeles area office 
a&ninistrator, The memorandum stated that Justice had provided 
T,abor with the following information: Morris Shenker, well- 
known labor attorney with alleged organized crime connections, 
I1 (4 s be(?n obtaining loans from the Culinary Workers Pension Fund 
tllrougll a Trust trustee. Attached to the memorandum was a fi- 
nlncial analysis prepared by Labor of the Trust's annual reports 
for fiscal years ended December 31, 1973 and 1974, which showed 
over $12 million in loans to Shenker-controlled corporations. 

Two days later, the assistant administrator of the Office 
trf Enforcement instructed the Los Angeles and St. J,ouis area of- 
t?ic(:s to be alert to all of Mr. Shenker's financial arrangements 
with the Trust, the Teamsters Pension Fund, and the St. Louis 
Pipcfitters Pension Fund and to send all information to head- 
cluartc$rs for coordination. On June 17, 1976, the Los Angeles 
area offfice opened an investigative case to determine if the 
Tr~lst had made loans to Shenker-controlled corporations and, if 
so ( to examine the propriety of the financial arrangements. 
Ilowcve r , no work was done on the case and onsite investigation 
wa!; tlclaycd until March 1977 because a skilled investigator was 
not available. 
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In rleccmber 1976, a Department of Justice strike force 
representative (an investigator from Labor's Office of the 
Ins~)cctcr General)l reported in a detailed memorandum to a Los 
A n g c! .I<:! 5; area supervisor that he had received allegations from a 
'['rust trustee regarding the loans, The memorandum stated that 
Mr. Shenker might be a party in interest and, therefore, prohi- 
bited from obtaining loans from the Trust. 

IIMr. Shenker is the sole share holder of Murrieta 
Hot Springs and together with other members of his 
family, sole shareholder of Sierra Charter Cor- 
poration of Nevada. Mr. Shenker is a substantial 
shareholder of record of 38% of the stock in Con- 
tinental Connector which owns the Dunes Hotel in 
J,as Vegas. This Company is a contributor to the 
so. Nevada Culinary and Bartenders Pension Trust 
(Culinary Trust). He may be a party-in-interest 
as descr'ibed in Section 3 (14) (H) of ERIsA...." 

The memorandum also described the loans and loan modifications 
that the Trust had made to Murrieta and Sierra, as well as the 
wrious financial problems that both companies were experienc- 
ing. 

r,ahor began its onsite investigation at the Trust on 
March 7, 1977. The assistant regional administrator told us 
that the investigation was delayed until March because much of 
his staff's time was spent providing technical assistance and 
becausa Labor area offices were not yet fully staffed with ERISA 
investigators. 

After about 1 week of onsite investigative work, the PWBP 
arlmini:;trator wrote to the Labor Under Secretary. 

‘On March 7, 1977, we briefed you on loans from 
Fiubject fund to Morris Shenker, a St. Louis 
attorney who was closely associated with Jimmy 
Hoffa . l . . We currently are conducting a fi- 
nancial audit of the Fund and are convinced that 
Shcnker related entities are milking the Fund. 

*l."b".m .-, -_- - .-.-.- . - ..#.e_- - 

1The strike force brings together investigators from various 
federal agencies under the guidance of a Justice Department 
attorney in charge, in order to combat organized crime and 
racketeering. 
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'I'otrll assets of the Fund are $37 million, of which 
$31 miLlion is loaned to Shenker entities. Fund 
a:;sc: ts are being loaned to Shenker in amounts of 
$4011,000 to $800,000 monthly. Shenker is attempt- 
incj to settle loans by turning over land of ques- 
t ional~lc value. “2 

On March 30, 1977, Labor initiated legal action by filing a 
corn~~laint and a motion for preliminary injunction in the Las 
Vecjas, Nevada, U.S. District Court. The defendants included 
10 current and former trustees, Mr. Shenker, and four Shenker- 
rclatc(f corporations (IJK, Murrieta, S&F, and Sierra). The 
motion for preliminary injunction had sought to stop the 
defendant trustees from further payment to Shenker-controlled 
cornpanics and to take management of the funds away from the 
trustees. Labor attorneys obtained assurances from the Trust's 
attorneys that the trustees would not advance more money to 
Shenker-controlled corporations. The associate solicitor told 
us that Labor agreed not to pursue the motion because it 
verified that the trustees had stopped funding the Shenker cor- 
porations and because the trustees agreed to appoint an 
ind(pcndent asset manager to manage the Trust's real estate 
il.SSC tS. The trustees retained control over the cash used to pay 
member benefits and Trust administrative expenses. 

CONCLUSIONS .- -..-. -.- - .- - __.,-- 

We recognize that during 1975 and 1976, Labor staff spent 
most of its time performing technical assistance work on ERISA 
and not conducting enforcement activities. However, in view of 
the continuing allegations regarding the Trust's activities, we 
believe that Labor should have started its investigation sooner. 
nctwc?6drl Scptcmber 1975 and March 1977, the Trust disbursed 
$10.1 million of the total $24.9 million to Shenker-controlled 
comparr i es, 

2Mr. ,Tames Hoffa was former president of the International 
Brotherhood of Teamsters, Chauffers, Warehousemen, and Helpers 
of America TJnion and a trustee of the Teamsters' Central 
,c; ta tes, Southeast and Southwest Areas Pension Fund. He was 
cr>nvic:txd and served a prison sentence for fraudulent abuse of 
ttlr? Tflarns ters' pension Eund assets. 
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THE SOLICITOR'S OFFICE RQLE IN THE SELECTION OF .-"l-"s.".~",-llll"-~- --- 

THE TRUS-T'S TWO ASSET MANAGERS 

Labor does not have departmental policy or guidance regard- 
ing its role and responsibility in the search for and selection 
of" asset managers. Solicitor's Office attorneys participated in 
the search for the Trust's first asset manager, UAB, but were 
.lt.:ss involved in the selection of Karsten, the second asset man- 
clqer )I J,abc)r's role in the selection of both of these asset man- 
aqc! rs was largely determined on an "ad hoc" basis by Solicitor's 
Office attorneys. 

THE SEARCH FOR THE TRUST'S ..--.-.--.-- ---_- 
FIRST ASSET MANAGER ..- -_.-_-_-.-_-"--- 

Labor's March 1977 motion for preliminary injunction sought 
to take 'management of the Trust's funds away from the trustees. 
After discussions among representatives of the Trust, the trust- 
ccw, and Labor, an agreement was reached regarding the appoint- 
mcnt of an independent asset manager. They agreed that the 
asset manager would be chosen by the trustees, agreed to by 
Labor, and approved by the court. If Labor objected to the 
selection, its attorneys could present the court with the rea- 
75 0 n 3 for the objection. After hearing the arguments, the court 
would approve or disapprove the trustees' selection. 

In June 1977, the trustees reviewed the proposals of 
several prospective asset managers. On the recommendation of 
their attorneys, the trustees selected Mortgage Ranque, Inc., of 
Houston, Texas. J,abor did not object to this selection and a 
stipulation (a legal instrument stating conditions or require- 
ments) naming the bank as asset manager was drafted. In early 
July, however, Mortgage Hanque requested modifications in the 
r;tipulation which neither the trustees nor I;abor accepted. 
MortcjaCjc Banque withdrew its proposal. 

The trustees began a new search for an asset manager. Ac- 
cording to the trustees, the number of candidates qualified and 
wE.Lling to take the job was very limited. Labor's attorneys 
assisted in the search at this point. The attorneys told us 
that Jlabor talked with many potential asset managers, or firms 
that could function as asset managers, but the "real good ones" 
1Jir1 not want to tackle the Trust's problems. Labor's attorneys 
said that Labor had no departmental guidelines to follow except 

18 



APPENDIX IV 

t,ti511: t;he supervisory attorneys, including the associate solici- 
h Cl r , saitl that they wanted "a bank with deep pockets"--a bank 
~i.tll enough assets that if it mismanaged the Trust, Labor could 
rccov~?r thcz money from the bank. 

According to UAB's former executive vice president who 
tl;lntl lttd the Trusts' assets, UAB first learned that the Trust and 
J,tll.)or were searching for an asset manager from a third party, a 
Ch .i.caqo attorney. The executive vice president said that the 
;ittornt:y contacted him and told him that Labor was looking for 
i\IJ asset manager and that UAB might have a chance of obtaining 
the ~job. A meeting was set up in Las Vegas between UAB's vice 
~jr:r?:;i(lent and a Labor attorney. At the meeting, UAB's vice 
prcsitlent and the Labor attorney discussed the Trust's problems, 
wIlat T,abor wns looking for in an asset manager, and what IJAB's 
Fee wc'ruld be for the work. (UAB's vice president said later, in 
h i :; tleI)oCtion for the trial, that he felt Labor was looking for 
:;omcone with enough assets that, if a problem arose, the Trust 
wou.lc~ he protected. ) UAB's vice president and the attorney who 
r?et up the discussion met with the trustees later, at a separate 
ant.! r: t i rig . 

[JAB made a presentation to the trustees, and in August 1977, 
UAI3 ' !'i proposal was adopted and signed by the trustees. A 
stiJ)ulation was executed by the trustees, Labor, and UAB and 
approved by the court on August 30, 1977. 

'IX!? SEARCH FOR THE SECOND ASSET MANAGER I - -".a - -."L--..-- eI --- _-.-. - 

In March 1978, UAB notified Labor that it wanted to resign 
as as:;et manager because the job was taking more time than ex- 
pc:ctr:(,1 and because it was not profitable. 

In August 1978, the Trust received proposals from two firms 
(Marrinson and Associates and Karsten). Marrinson and Associ- 
ates' president, Mr. Allen Marrinson, was UAB's former executive 
vice: ]t)rcsitlent and had handled the Trust's assets for UAB. He 
hat1 Left UAB and founded the law firm of "Marrinson and Associ- 
a tcl!: * " One of Mr. Marrinson's associates was the attorney who 
hacl set up the meeting in Las Vegas between UAB and the T,abor 
;Ittorncy, After that meeting, UAB hired the attorney to help 
Mr. Marrinson handle the asset manager work. At the time that 
M;lrrinson and Associates submitted its proposal in August 1978, 
this attorney was being investigated by UAB regarding some 
(du(?!;tionabLe billings of the Trust. (The attorney later agreed 
to t)ay back about $15,000 to the Trust because of poor bookkeep- 
inq. 1 
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I,abor did a financial check on Karsten. In August 1978, 
Karstt!n'a combined net worth was about $900,000 and was covered 
by Citluciary liability insurance. Records available to us did 
not disclose Marrinson's net worth, however, according to a 
tru!itee , Pllarrinson lacked "financial depth." 

In September 1978, the trustees, after hearing presentations 
by Marrinson, Karsten, and a third prospective manager, selected 
Marrinson. Minutes of the trustees' meetings did not disclose 
the reasons for this selection. In October 1978, Labor wrote a 
letter to the trustees expressing disagreement with the selec- 
tion. Labor's reasons for disagreeing were Mr. Marrinson's 
partnership with the attorney, minimal capital, limited real 
estate experience, lack of loyalty to the Trust, lack of under- 
standing of conflict of interest, and misrepresentation. 

On November 7, 1978, the trustees selected Karsten as the 
Trust's asset manager. Labor did not object to this new selec- 
tion, and the court approved Karsten in April 1979. Karsten was 
accluired by First Interstate Bank in 1983. 

CONCLUSIONS ."_.... A-...-.^..- -.--m 

Our review of Labor's involvement in the Trust's selection 
~11: its asset managers disclosed that Labor's role was largely 
determined on an "ad hoc" basis by Solicitor's Office attorneys, 
not hy a formal Labor policy. Labor does not have policy or 
guidance regarding the role of Labor in the search for and 
solcction of asset managers. Our review, however, was limited 
to one fund, and we do not know if this lack of formal policy is 
a I,roblcJn. 
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APPENDIX V 

LABOR'S ROLE IN MONITORING -- --- 

THE TRUST'S -ASSET MANAGER --- 

Although Labor requested and received court-approved provi- 
5: ions that required the asset managers to periodically report 
Trust investment activities to the department, it did not de- 
velop a strategy to receive, evaluate, and, if necessary, act on 
this information. 

Consequently, there were disagreements among the Labor of- 
ficials who performed the various monitoring activities regard- 
ing which office, Solicitor's or PWBP, should perform the moni- 
toring, how it should be accomplished, and what action Labor 
should take regarding potentially imprudent investments. 

IJAB WAS REQUIRED TO REPORT - .-.- 
CERTAIN TRANSACTIONS l.-"l-l--"- 

UAD was required to (1) provide monthly activity reports to 
the trustees and Labor and (2) report transactions with any 
party in interest to Labor and IRS under a special exemption 
procedure. 

The August 30, 1977, stipulation, which named UAB as asset 
manayer, included a provision that the asset manager notify 
Labor and the trustees 5 days prior to implementing any proposed 
transaction exceeding $100,000. If either Labor or the trustees 
objected to the transaction, the asset manager was to notify the 
objecting party of its decision and wait at least 24 hours (or 1 
full business day) before completing the transaction. The 
stipulation also required the asset manager to develop an over- 
(111 plan for the management and/or disposition of Trust assets. 
The 5-day notice requirement was not required in the asset man- 
agement plan that was approved by the court in April 1978. The 
asset manager was, however, required to provide monthly activity 
reports to the trustees and Labor that were to include a report 
of each transaction entered into or action taken involving real 
estate-related assets. On April 7, 1978, Labor asked the court 
to reimpose the notice requirement on the asset manager, but the 
court declined because of the monthly reporting requirements 
imposed by the asset management plan. 

UAB applied to Labor and IRS for an ERISA exemption to 
allow it to engage in transactions with certain parties in 
interest, which would be "necessary to 'work out' a number of 
troubled loans and other assets" held by the Trust. Under 
FIRI SA, Labor is required to establish an exemption procedure for 
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funcl transactions that would otherwise be illegal if an exemp- 
tion was not granted, Labor must coordinate with IRS and cannot 
qrrlnt an exemption unless it is: 

--administratively feasible, 

--in the interests of the fund and of its participants and 
beneficiaries, and 

--protective of the rights of participants and 
beneficiaries of such fund. 

The exemption was granted by Labor and IRS on June 26, 
1978, and provided that the asset manager report "within thirty 
days, transactions with any party--in-interest or disqualified 
person which constitute a continuation, reconfirmation or 
adjustment of any arrangement relating to a Pension Trust*" 

LABOR IDENTIFIED PROBLEMS WITH THE _-.--_--II_-_- l._l---.-- -.- 
TRUST'S REAL ESTATE TRANSACTIONS , _(",m -.-"e -,s - - f.-t"ll..-.-X-" --M-w 

Several Labor offices were involved in looking at the asset 
manager's activities, including PWBP's Offices of Enforcement 
and ~iitluciary Standards, LMSA's Office of Management, the 
Solicitor's Office, and the Los Angeles area office. Two real 
estate transactions caused disagreement among Labor officials in 
thew offices. Potential problems were identified regarding 
these two transactions, but T.,abor did not develop a plan for 
evaluating and acting on the information it received. In addi- 
tion, Labor officials did not agree on what should be done about 
the problem transactions. Labor's monitoring activities regard- 
inq these two real estate investments made by UAB in 1978 are 
discussed in this section. 

1r-1 March 1978, after reviewing the asset management plan, 
the chief of PWBP's Division of Reporting Enforcement, who had 
ibeen involved in the initial investigation, expressed disagree- 
ment with three real estate transactions proposed by the asset 
ma r\ a cj e z: . The transactions involved the Trust's collateral. The 
chief ilnrl two area office investigators questioned an investment 
or ;nl)proximatcly $1 million in a land development project in 
Oregon, about which they had little information. They believed 
tha t th i s transaction should not take place without Labor ob- 
taininq rnoix detailed information. 

On March 23, 1978, one of these investigators visited the 
as:;cit manager I but was unable to obtain such information. The 
investigator reported that the Trust's investments appeared to 
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1~: hand led outside of the asset manager's trust department's 
normal course of business. He told us he could not obtain the 
dctai.Lcd information during his March 1978 visit to the asset 
manager because the Trust's recordkeeping was inadequate, the 
management and accounting controls were weak, and he did not 
understand how the Trust's investment activities met the bank's 
trust standards. Although these cluestions remained regarding 
the real estate transactions and the asset manager's handling of 
the account, the asset manager went ahead with the Oregon de- 
velopment project, L,abor could have objected to the transac- 
tions in court, but did not. We examined available records and 
discussed this matter with the attorney in charge of the case, 
but we could not determine why Labor did not object. 

In May 1978, the chief of PWBP's Division of Reporting En- 
forcement, after reviewing a 1978 asset manager report, stated 
that "from a review as to how UAB is handling this account, the 
writer believes that the Trust is going to suffer large losses." 
In <June 1978, the asset manager proposed another land develop- 
ment project, an investment of $3.6 million, which the Office of 
Enforcement was skeptical about. The office reported that 
"these land transactions appear to benefit Shenker more than the 
Culinary Fund. T3oth of the transactions [this project and the 
Oregon project] appear to be 'orchestrated' by Shenker, not 
'lJA13. " In July 1978, PWBP and the Solicitor's Office staff met 
to discuss these concerns. At the meeting, PWBP and the attor- 
neys disagreed as to what future monitoring Labor should per- 
form, if any. The PWBP administrator suggested that Labor 
should either "toughen up reporting requirements" or obtain a 
"real estate expert to look at the two most recent transac- 
tions." 

In August 1978, a financial analyst from LMSA's Office of 
Management, who was evaluating PWBP's Office of Enforcement, 
discovered that the chief of Reporting Enforcement had raised 
serious concerns about the Trust's investments, but these con- 
cerns, in the analyst's opinion, had not been resolved. The fi- 
nancial analyst told us that he checked with the Office of 
Fiduciary Standards and the Solicitor's Office to determine 
which office was monitoring the Trust's investments. He found 
that neither office was monitoring--each office believed it was 
the other's responsibility. He suggested to the PWBP adminis- 
trator that Ilabor should start systematically monitoring the ac- 
tivities of the asset manager. 

An LMSA analyst with a real estate investment background 
was selected by the administrator to perform an indepth analysis 
0 f th(3 reports submitted by the asset manager. In meetings from 
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St.tptc!mber 1.978 through January 1979 and in written reports in 
March and April 1979, the analyst reported his conclusions to 
the VW131 administrator. He reported that the asset manager's 
re;ll estate investment strategy was "not supported by financial 
analysis or apparently a thorough analysis of probable outcome." 
Several staff members analyzed the available raw data to estab- 
li.sh through financial analysis whether the selected course of 
iict.ion was in the best interest of the Trust. Based on this 
tla ta, the analyst concluded that there were, assuming the most 
I.ikely conditions, probable losses of $2 million to $3 million 
on one transaction. I)n the other transaction he thought the 
Trust would incur $8 million to $10 million in additional lia- 
i:, i 1 i t ic s , In the event the development could not be sold, the 
Trust would have this amount exposed to possible loss. 

On July 2, 1979, the assistant administrator of the Office 
of Fiduciary Standards reported to the PWBP administrator that 
his office had been requested by the former PWBP deputy adminis- 
trator to review the report prepared by the analyst. The 
assistant administrator reported that his office disagreed with 
the analyst's findings. He also reported, however, as did the 
analyst, that there was not enough information on which to base 
a final conclusion. Documents available to us did not show that 
I,abor had obtained additional information and the assistant 
administrator told us he did not know whether Labor had obtained 
such information. 

UAB completed both of the transactions that some Labor of- 
ficials found questionable. When Karsten became asset manager 
in April 1979, it attempted to work out the problems with both 
developments. In May 1981, Karsten calculated a net loss of 
$309,500 on the $3.6 million investment. According to Karsten, 
the estimate was based on a number of contingencies and highly 
spc2cu lative, It assumed that the homebuilding project covering 
alI. Lots would be successful and that all lots would be sold 
over a g-year period. Karsten calculated a net profit of 
$225,000 on the $1 million investment. This estimate assumed 
that the property would receive the needed zoning approval from 
the state land development commission. 

GAO INQUIRIES DID NOT PROMPT ._-.- .".-_-.-.._---m --"-------- 
PWBP OR THE SOLICITOR'S OFFICE ..-..-".-.-"- -.-e.....---.---- .---- 
To-MQNITOR THE ASSET MANAGER, KARSTEN - -,.L.--.-_-.-"-.-l-.---l-_-------_-I_" 

Although several Labor offices and officials were involved 
in looking at various aspects of UAB's activities, no one had or 
took the overall responsibility. When Karsten became asset 
manager in 1979, it became subject to the same monthly reporting 
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rxcju i rcrncnts as unJ3. During our review in 1982, we became con- 
c:c!rnc!tl about the lack of a planned and coordinated review of 
KrXr!it(-!n's activities. We discussed this with Labor officials, 
including the PWBP administrator at that time and the associate 
solicitor in charge of this litigation. We talked with the 
associate solicitor in May 1982 and the PWBP administrator in 
,June 1982. Solicitor's Office officials told us that monitoring 
exemption reports and asset management reports is not the 
rc~sponsibility of their office, although they do review the 
a:;set management reports for their potential impact on the pend- 
ing litigation. The PWBP administrator told us that his office 
was not monitoring the activities of the asset manager because 
t1lc.z Solicitor's Office was handling the case. He said that if 
the Solicitor believes monitoring should be performed, he should 
tc? 1 I PWLlP . As of March 1984, PWBP and the Solicitor's Office 
had not decided who, if anyone, should be monitoring the asset 
manager’s activities. 

CONCTAJSIONS _ sl-"l - _(.- -"-"*-.- 

PWHP and the Solicitor's Office did not establish proce- 
dures to provide a planned and coordinated effort to monitor the 
Trust's asset manager's activities. Consequently, we believe 
their efforts to ensure the safety of the Trust's assets were 
hindered. However, because our review was limited to one fund, 
we do not know how widespread or significant this problem may 
bc . 
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EFFORTS BY LABOR TO SETTLE -_-._- _ _ .a- 

WITH THE DEFENDANTS 

APPENDIX ;I 

Since 1980 there have been several settlement discussions 
between Labor and Mr. Shenker and between Labor and the Trust's 
trustees and attorneys. The current asset manager and 
Mr. Shenker have also discussed settlement. 

SETTLEMENT DISCUSSIONS WITH MR. SHENKER . -....- -.-A -.--I- -.-- 

In May 1980, after discussions between Mr. Shenker's attor- 
neys and Labor, Mr. Shenker's attorneys proposed to Labor that a 
$10 miliion payment to the Trust was acceptable to Mr. Shenker 
in sctt.lc?ment of all liabilities to the Trust. A Labor attorney 
responded to Mr. Shenker that the amount must be substantially 
hi,ght?r. These negotiations ended at this point. 

In late 1980 and early 1981, Labor and Mr. Shenker had fur- 
thcr settlement discussions. A Labor attorney wrote to Mr. 
Shenkctr's attorney in March 1981 that $18 million in cash and 
the Trust’s retention of all collateral (valued at that time by 
the Trust's asset manager at approximately $11 million) was the 
minimum acceptable settlement to the Trust. Mr. Shenker 
rejected that offer. The supervisory Labor attorney in charge 
of the case told us that because !4r. Shenker and Labor were "so 
Ear apart,(I settlement discussions were dropped. Since March 
1981, Labor has not discussed settlement with Mr. Shenker. Ac- 
cording to the supervisory Labor attorney, the current asset 
manager, Karsten, and Mr. Shenker had many settlement discus- 
sions. 

SETTLEMENT DISCUSSIONS WITH THE I_-_--.--_-- 
TRIJSTEES AND TRUST ATTORNEYS .l-ll-.-..---- - 

In September 1981, Labor began settlement discussions with 
the defendant trustees and Trust attorneys. The supervisory 
T,abc>r attorney handling the case told us that Labor was seeking 
hottr financial restitution from the defendants and injunctive 
rc.Licf: for the Trust. In February 1983, Labor announced a 
:;cttlement and consent decree (an agreement entered into by con- 
sent of the parties under sanction of the court) resulting in a 
I,aymcnt of $3.7 million in restitution to the Trust. This surn 
was paid to the Trust by the defendants' fiduciary liability 
irrsurancc and the Trust attorneys' malpractice insurer. Seven 
of the LO named defendant trustees and the two Trust attorneys 
(who had advised the Trust in connection with the loans to 
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Shcnker-controlled corporations) were involved in the monetary 
settlement. One defendant trustee, whose case was decided on 
April 2, 1984, and two other defendant trustees, who had been 
dismissed from the case earlier, were not involved in this 
settlement. 

The consent decree provided for injunctive relief against 
three defendant trustees, barring two of them from serving as 
fiduciaries for any ERISA fund for 5 years and barring one from 
serving as fiduciary for any fund, except the Trust, for 5 
years, as long as the Trust's investments were handled by an 
asset manager, It also limited the attorneys' activities with 
regard to ERISA funds for 4 years. In addition, the consent 
decree required the Trust to have most of its assets managed by 
a professional asset manager, as defined by ERISA, for 5 years. 

The April 1984 judgment against the defendant trustee 
barred him from serving as a trustee for an ERISA-covered plan 
for 5 years. 
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APPENDIX VII.!. 

PRINCIPAL DEPARTMENT OF LABOR ---- -.- 

OFFICIALS ,RESPONSIBLE-FOR - 

THE ACTIVITIES -DI_SCUSSE~,WIN TH-IS REPCRT ..--_..--- 

Tenure of office 
From To 

Office of the Secretary of Labor . mI- r( -.I.- -1-"*-1--- Ifme-...- -- 

Secretary of Labor: 
Raymond J. Donovan 
Ray rllarshall 
William J. Usery, Jr. 

Under Secretary of Labor: 
Ford T3arney Ford 
(Vacant) 
Malcolm R. Lovell, Jr. 
(Vacant) 
John Gentry 
(Vacant) 
Robert J. Brown 

Labor-Management Services ‘.""--.-?"-,s~- ---f---~----- Administration - -.-----.--.--.-1-.." 

Assistant Secretary for J,abor- 
Management Relations: 

(Vacant) 
Donald L. Dotson 
(Vacant) 
~il.liam Hobgood 
(Vacant) 
Francis X. Burkhardt 
Bernard E. Delury 

$eputy Assistant Secretary 
for Labor-Management Relations: 

Ronald ,J. St. Cyr 
Hilary M. Sheply (Acting) 
(Vacant 1 
Rocco C. DeMarco 
J. Vernon Ballard (Acting) 
,Jack Warshaw 
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Feb. 1981 Present 
Jan. 1977 Jan. 1981 
Feb. 1976 Jan. 1977 

July 1983 Present 
Apr. 1983 July 1983 
Sept. 1981 Mar. 1983 
Feb. 1981 Aug. 1981 
Oct. 1979 Jan. 1981 
Sept. 1979 Sept. 1979 
Mar. 1977 Aug. 1979 

r4ar. 1983 Present 
May 1981 Mar. 1983 
Feb. 1981 Apr. 1981 
July 1979 Jan. 1981 
Feb. 1979 June 1979 
Mar. 1977 Jan. 1979 
Apr. 1976 Feb. 1977 

May 1981 Present 
Jan. 1981 May 1981 
Sept. 1980 Dec. 1980 
Apr. 1979 Aug. 1980 
F4ar. 1979 tiar. 1979 
May 1976 Mar. 1979 
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Deputy Assistant Secretary 
for Program Operations:a 
(Vacant) 
John J. Walsh 

Administrator, Pension and 
Welfare Benefit Program:b 

Robert A.G. Monks 
Alan D. Lebowitz (Acting) 
Jeffery N. Clayton 
Ian D. Lanoff 
J. Vernon Ballard (Acting) 

Deputy Administrator, Pension 
and Welfare Benefit Program: 

Morton Klevan 
(Vacant) 
J. Vernon Ballard 

Office of the Solicitor ----."--- 

Solicitor of Labor: 
Francis X. J,illy 
(Vacant) 
Timothy Ryan 
Carin A. Clauss 
Alfred Albert (Acting) 
William J. Kilberg 

Deputy Solicitor: 
(Vacant) 
Francis X. Lilly 
(Vacant) 
Alfred G. Albert 

Associate Solicitor, Division of 
Plan Renefits Security: 

Robert Eccles (Acting) 
Monica Gallagher 
Steven J. Sacber 
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Tenure of office 
From To - 

Jan. 1984 
NOV. 1982 

Dec. 1983 
Sept. 1983 
Dec. 1981 
May 1977 
Jan. 1977 

Mar. 1980 
Jan. 1980 
Dec. 1974 

Present 
Jan. 1984 

Present 
Dec. 1983 
Sept. 1983 
Dec. 1981 
May 1977 

Present 
Feb. 1980 
Dec. 1979 

Mar. 1984 Present 
May 1983 Mar. 1984 
Mar. 1981 Apr. 1983 
Mar. 1977 Jan. 1981 
Jan. 1977 Mar. 1977 
Apr. 1973 Jan. 1977 

Mar. 1984 Present 
Jan. 1982 Nar. 1984 
Apr. 1981 Dec. 1981 
Sept. 1970 Apr. 1981 

Aug. 1982 Present 
NOV. 1977 Aug. 1982 
Feb. 1975 Aug. 1977 
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Tenure of office 
From TO - 

Associate Solicitor, 
Special Litigation Division: 

David Il. Feldman 
Richard 0. Patterson(Acting) 
Mike Stewart 
Monica Gallagher (Acting) 

July 1981 Present 
!4ar. 1981 July 1981 
Oct. 1980 Feb. 1981 
r4ay 1980 Sept. 1980 

LMSA Investiyation Staff--Los Angeles -..s--- -- 

Administrator, Area Office: 
Ricki Curry 
(Vacant) 
Kenneth Evans 
(Vacant) 
Terrence Martin 

July 1980 Present 
Aug. 1979 June 1980 
Jan. 1977 Aug. 1979 
Oct. 1976 Jan. 1977 
Oct. 1975 Oct. 1976 

aposition established in November 1982. 

bl?WBP is a separate unit within the Department of Labor as of 
May 20, 1984. 

(207363) 
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